
 
 

Pillsbury Winthrop Shaw Pittman LLP 
1200 Seventeenth Street, NW | Washington, DC 20036 USA | tel .202.663.8000 | fax 202.663.8007 
 

 
Eric C. Rusnak 

tel: +1. 202.663.8164 
eric.rusnak@pillsburylaw.com 

 
June 29, 2021 
 
VIA EDIS  
 
The Honorable Lisa R. Barton 
Secretary to the Commission 
U.S. International Trade Commission 
500 E Street S.W. 
Washington, DC 20436 
 

RE: Certain Residential Premises Security Monitoring and Automation Control Panels, 
and Components Thereof  

Dear Secretary Barton: 

Attached for filing on behalf of Complainants ADT LLC, and The ADT Security 
Corporation (collectively “ADT” or “Complainants”) are the following documents in support of 
ADT’s request that the Commission commence an investigation pursuant to Section 337 of the 
Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. §1337.  We have included a separate letter requesting 
confidential treatment of certain exhibits included with this filing. 

ADT makes this filing under the Commission’s Temporary Change to Filing Procedures, 
dated March 16, 2020.   

ADT submits the following: 

1. One electronic copy of ADT’s public Verified Complaint and Statement on the Public 
Interest pursuant to 19 C.F.R. §§ 210.4(f)(2), 210.8(a)(l)(i), and 210.8(b); 

2. One electronic copy of public Exhibits and Appendices to the public Verified 
Complaint pursuant to 19 C.F.R. §§ 210.4(f)(2), 210(f)(7)(i), and 210.8(a)(1)(i); 

3. One electronic copy of Confidential Exhibit 36 to the public Verified Complaint 
pursuant to 19 C.F.R. §§ 201.6(c), 210.4(f)(2), and 210.8(a)(1)(ii); 
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4. One electronic copy of each of United States Patent Nos. 8,976,937 (“the ’937 
Patent”) and 9,286,772 (“the ’772 Patent”) listed as Exhibits 19 and 20 in the 
Complaint;1 

5. One electronic copy of each assignment for the ’937 and ’772 Patents listed as 
Exhibits 21 and 22 in the Complaint;2 

6. One electronic copy of each of the prosecution histories for the ’937 and ’772 Patents 
listed as Appendices A and C in the Complaint;3 

7. One electronic copy of applicable pages of each technical reference mentioned in the 
prosecution history of each of the ’937 and ’772 Patents listed as Appendices B and D 
in the Complaint (Commission Rule 210.12(c)(2)), to the extent available; and 

8. A letter pursuant to Commission Rules 201.6(b) and 210.5(d) requesting confidential 
treatment of information appearing in Confidential Exhibit 36 to the Verified 
Complaint.   

Thank you for your attention to this filing.  Please contact me if you have any questions.   

Sincerely, 

 

Eric C. Rusnak 
Counsel to ADT LLC and The ADT Security Corporation 

 
1  ADT has requested certified copies of the ’937 and ’772 Patents from the U.S. Patent and 

Trademark Office, but they are not yet available.  As soon as certified copies become 
available, ADT will supplement the Complaint to add the certified copies pursuant to 
Commission Rules 210.8(a)(1)(i) and 210.12 (a)(9)(i).   

2  ADT has requested certified copies of the assignments of the ’937 and ’772 Patents, but they 
are not yet available from the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.  As soon as certified copies 
become available, ADT will supplement the Complaint to add the certified copies pursuant to 
Commission Rules 210(a)(1)(i) and 210(a)(9)(iii). 

3  ADT has requested certified copies of the prosecution histories of the ’937 and ’772 Patents, 
but they are not yet available from the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.  As soon as certified 
copies become available, ADT will supplement the Complaint to add the certified copies 
pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(c)(1). 
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June 29, 2021 
 
VIA EDIS  
 
The Honorable Lisa R. Barton 
Secretary to the Commission 
U.S. International Trade Commission 
500 E Street S.W. 
Washington, DC 20436 
 

RE: Certain Residential Premises Security Monitoring and Automation Control Panels, 
and Components Thereof : Request for Confidential Treatment  

Dear Secretary Barton: 

In accordance with 19 C.F.R. §§ 201.6 and 210.5, Complainants ADT LLC and The ADT 
Security Corporation (collectively “ADT” or “Complainants”) request confidential treatment for 
the confidential business information contained in Confidential Exhibit 36 to ADT’s Verified 
Complaint.   

The information contained in Confidential Exhibit 36 is proprietary commercial 
information and consists of business proprietary information regarding the investments upon 
which ADT’s claim of domestic industry is based.  

The information in Confidential Exhibit 36 qualifies as confidential business information 
pursuant to Rule 201.6(a) because: 

1. It is not publicly available; 

2. Unauthorized disclosure of such information could cause substantial harm to the 
competitive position of ADT; and 

3. The disclosure of such information could impair the Commission’s ability to obtain 
information necessary to perform is statutory function.   

Please contact me if you have any questions or concerns about ADT’s request.     
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Sincerely, 

 

Eric C. Rusnak 
Counsel to ADT LLC and The ADT Security Corporation 
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UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 

CERTAIN RESIDENTIAL PREMISES 
SECURITY MONITORING AND 
AUTOMATION CONTROL PANELS, AND 
COMPONENTS THEREOF 

Investigation No. 337-TA-___ 

COMPLAINANTS’ STATEMENT ON THE PUBLIC INTEREST 

Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.8(b), 19 C.F.R. § 210.8(b), Complainants ADT LLC, 

and The ADT Security Corporation (collectively “ADT” or “Complainants”) respectfully submit 

this Statement Regarding the Public Interest.  ADT seeks a limited exclusion order excluding from 

entry into the United States certain residential premises security monitoring and automation 

control panels and components thereof that infringe certain claims of United States Patent Nos. 

8,976,937 and 9,286,772 (collectively, “the Asserted Patents”).   

ADT also seeks permanent cease and desist orders prohibiting Vivint, Inc.  (“Vivint” or 

“Proposed Respondent”), its subsidiaries, parents, related companies, and agents from engaging in 

the importation, sale for importation, marketing and/or advertising, distribution, offering for sale, 

sale, use after importation, sale after importation, or other transfer within the United States of 

certain residential premises security monitoring and automation control panels and components 

thereof that infringe one or more claims of the Asserted Patents.   

Exclusion of such products from the United States will not have an adverse effect on the 

public health and welfare in the United States, competitive conditions in the United States 

economy, the production of like or directly competitive articles in the United States, or United 

States consumers.  Exclusion of Vivint’s infringing residential premises security monitoring and 

automation control panels and components thereof would not “deprive the public of products 
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necessary for some important health or welfare need.” Spansion, Inc. v. US.  Int 'l Trade Comm 'n, 

629 F.3d 1331, 1360 (Fed. Cir. 2010).  Further, because ADT can and does supply the market for 

residential premises security monitoring and automation control panels, consumers would not face 

any shortage of like or competitive products in the United States.  As described in the Complaint, 

ADT can and does supply residential security monitoring and automation control panels to the 

U.S. market.  Thus, this Investigation does not present an instance where a compelling public 

interest would supersede entry of the requested remedial orders. 

I. HOW THE PRODUCTS AT ISSUE ARE USED IN THE UNITED STATES 

The products at issue in this investigation include premises security monitoring and 

automation control panels and components thereof, which are commonly used by consumers in 

residential applications.  Vivint’s control panels allow a consumer to monitor and control their 

premise’s life safety devices (e.g., carbon monoxide detectors, smoke detectors, intrusion 

detectors) and lifestyle devices (e.g., heating/cooling, lights, locks, doorbells), while either on the 

premises or remotely via a mobile app. These control panels also allow Vivint personnel to 

monitor customers’ premises, via a network of “central monitoring stations,” which are located 

throughout the United States. 

II. THERE ARE NO PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, OR WELFARE CONCERNS 
RELATING TO THE REQUESTED REMEDIAL ORDERS 

Issuance of the requested remedial orders would have no adverse effect on the public 

health, safety, or welfare in the United States.  In general, concerns about a negative impact on 

public health, safety, or welfare have arisen in cases involving pharmaceuticals, essential 

equipment for medical treatment or implicated key national interests.  See Spansion, 629 F.3d at 

1360.  For example, the Commission has previously concluded that access to essential medical 

equipment used to treat burn victims is a significant public interest consideration because the 
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equipment “provide[s] benefits unavailable from any other device or method of treatment.” 

Certain Fluidized Supporting Apparatus & Components Thereof, Inv. No. 337-TA-182/188, 

USITC Pub. 1667, Comm’n Op. at 23-25 (Oct. 1984).  None of these concerns are present here.  

And as discussed further below, the requested remedial orders will not significantly impact the 

overall market for control panels in the United States.  Accordingly, access to Vivint’s accused 

products does not implicate any meaningful public health, safety, or welfare concern.   

Indeed, the requested relief serves the public interest because, as the Commission has long-

recognized, there is a strong public interest in protecting intellectual property rights.  Certain 

Baseband Processor Chips and Chipsets, Transmitter and Receiver (Radio) Chips, Power Control 

Chips, and Products Containing Same, Including Cellular Telephone Handsets, Inv. No. 337-TA-

543, Comm'n Op. at 136-37 (June 19, 2007).  This strong interest in protecting ADT’s intellectual 

property rights and the domestic industry set forth in the Complaint far outweighs any 

hypothetical adverse effect on the public. 

III. ADT SUPPLIES ARTICLES THAT COULD REPLACE THE ACCUSED 
PRODUCTS AT ISSUE IF THEY WERE TO BE EXCLUDED 

Control panels for use as part of a residential premises security monitoring and automation 

system are otherwise already available.  ADT adequately supplies the market and will continue to 

do so irrespective of whether the requested remedial orders are issued.  Proposed Respondent is 

not an exclusive supplier of residential security control panels in the United States market.  

Indeed, Proposed Respondent has recently reported less than an estimated 11% of market share in 

relation to the provision of residential security services that incorporate the Accused Products; 

accordingly, the needs of those United States consumers will be adequately met even without 

access to Proposed Respondent’s products.  Further, Proposed Respondent’s products do not 

contain any unique health or safety-related features that cannot be found in other products on the 
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market.  No public interest concerns exist where the market contains an adequate supply of 

competitive or substitute products for those subject to a remedial order.  See, e.g., Certain Lens 

Fitted Film Packages, Inv. No. 337-TA-406, Comm'n Op. at 18 (June 28, 1999).  The residential 

security control panel market is highly competitive, and ADT has the capacity to replace Proposed 

Respondent’s infringing products for the United States market without delay. 

IV. ADT CAN RELACE THE VOLUME OF ARTICLES SUBJECT TO THE 
REQUESTED REMEDIAL ORDER IN A COMMERCIALLY REASONABLE 
TIME 

Several residential premises security monitoring and automation control panels and 

components thereof are currently available in the United States, including products from ADT.  

ADT has the capacity to increase production and supply of residential premises security 

monitoring and automation control panels, should demand require.  Consequently, consumers will 

have access to products from ADT in amounts sufficient to meet consumer demand should the 

accused products be excluded from the United States. 

V. THE REQUESTED REMEDIAL ORDER WOULD HAVE MINIMAL IMPACT ON 
CONSUMERS 

Consumers will have available to them in the United States marketplace a wide variety of 

control panels, including those supplied by ADT, if Vivint’s accused products are excluded from 

the United States.  In view of the availability of commercial alternatives to the Accused Products 

(which, at most, are only provided to less than 11% of the overall United States market for 

subscription-based services covering premises security monitoring and home automation 

services), the exclusion of the infringing products will not negatively impact consumers in the 

United States.  Rather, the requested relief will serve the public interest by enforcing United States 

intellectual property rights.  Precluding the Proposed Respondent from importing and selling its 

infringing residential premises security monitoring and automation control panels and components 
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thereof will benefit the public interest by protecting innovators, such as ADT, that invest 

domestically to research and develop new technology and distribute it to American consumers.  

Permitting unlicensed entities like the Proposed Respondent to import and sell infringing 

residential premises security monitoring and automation control panels and components thereof 

would not only devalue the work done by ADT, but would also undermine future investment in 

similar technology.  See Certain Display Controllers and Products Containing Same, Inv. No. 

337-TA-491/481, Comm'n Op. at 66 (Feb. 4, 2005). 

VI. CONCLUSION 

For the foregoing reasons, the Commission granting the requested remedial orders will 

serve the public interest.  The Accused Products are not necessary to any health or welfare need, 

and an adequate supply of substitute products will be available through ADT and other companies.  

Accordingly, the strong public interest in protecting ADT’s intellectual property rights outweighs 

any potential adverse impact on the public, and the Commission should issue the requested 

remedial orders if it determines that the Proposed Respondent has violated Section 337. 

 

Dated: June 29, 2021 PILLSBURY WINTHROP SHAW PITTMAN LLP  
 
/s/ Eric C. Rusnak 

 Michael E. Zeliger  
michael.zeliger@pillsburylaw.com 
Audrey Lo 
audrey.lo@pillsburylaw.com 
Ranjini Acharya  
ranjini.acharya@pillsburylaw.com 
2550 Hanover Street  
Palo Alto, CA 94304 
Telephone (650) 233-4500 
Facsimile: (650) 233-4545 
 
Eric C. Rusnak 
eric.rusnak@pillsburylaw.com 
Kecia Reynolds 
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kecia.reynolds@pillsburylaw.com 
1200 Seventeenth St NW 
Washington, DC 20036 
Telephone (202) 663-8000 
Facsimile: (202) 663-8007 
 
Attorneys for Complainants 
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EXHIBITS 
 

No. Description 

1 ADT Reports Fourth Quarter and Full Year 2020 Results, available at 
https://investor.adt.com/press-releases/press-release-details/2021/ADT-Reports-Fourth-
Quarter-and-Full-Year-2020-Results/default.aspx 

2 Our history, available at https://www.adt.com/about-adt/history 

3 ADT’s commitment to safety and security during this challenging time, available at 
https://www.adt.com/coronavirus 

4 Inside the Heart of ADT’s National Monitoring Center in Aurora, Co., available at 
https://www.securityinfowatch.com/alarms-monitoring/central-station-alarm-
monitoring/article/10558161/inside-the-heart-of-adts-national-monitoring-center-in-
aurora-co 

5 Become an ADT Authorized Dealer, available at https://www.adt.com/dealerprogram 

6 ADT Authorized Dealer, available at https://smarthomesecuritync.com 

7 ADT Authorized Dealer, available at https://jalsecurity.com 

8 ADT Authorized Dealer, available at https://mysafehaven.com 

9 ADT Authorized Dealer, available at https://www.californiasecuritypro.com 

10 Awards, available at https://news.adt.com/awards 

11 ADT wins 2021 TMA/SSI Monitoring Technology “Marvel” Award, available at 
https://tma.us/adt-wins-2021-tma-ssi-monitoring-technology-marvel-award/ 

12 America’s Most Trusted Brands, available at https://www.newsweek.com/brandspark-
most-trusted-awards-2021 

13 CES 2021 Innovation Awards, available at https://ces.tech/Innovation-
Awards/Honorees.aspx 

14 ADT Acquires I-View Now to Help Revolutionize Professional Monitoring, available at 
https://news.adt.com/news-releases/news-release-details/adt-acquires-i-view-now-help-
revolutionize-professional  

15 ADT and CellBounce Announce Arrival of Plug-And-Play Solution to 3G Network 
Sunset by Summer, available at https://news.adt.com/news-releases/news-release-
details/adt-and-cellbounce-announce-arrival-plug-and-play-solution-3g 

16 ADT Products, available at https://www.adt.com/command 

17 Panel (SkyControl) – General Info and Specifications, available at 
https://support.vivint.com/s/article/Products-SkyControl-Panel 

18 Vivint Smart Hub – General Info and Specification, available at 
https://support.vivint.com/s/article/Products-Vivint-Smart-Hub-v2 

19 U.S. Patent No. 8,976,937 
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No. Description 

20 U.S. Patent No. 9,286,772 

21 Assignment record for U.S. Patent No. 8,976,937 

22 Assignment record for U.S. Patent No. 9,286,772 

23 ADT LLC Corporation Record 

24 Vivint, Inc. Corporation Record 

25 Vivint Smart Home, Inc. 2020 Annual Report, available at 
https://s26.q4cdn.com/400230584/files/doc_financials/2020/ar/2020-Annual-Report-
Vivint-Smart-Home,-Inc..pdf 

26 Invoice – purchase of Vivint system 

27 How to buy a Vivint system, available at https://www.vivint.com/how-to-buy 

28 Infringement Claim Chart – U.S. Patent No. 8,976,937 for Vivint Smart Hub Panel 

29 Infringement Claim Chart – U.S. Patent No. 8,976,937 for Vivint SkyControl Panel 

30 Infringement Claim Chart – U.S. Patent No. 9,286,772 for Vivint Smart Hub Panel 

31 Infringement Claim Chart – U.S. Patent No. 9,286,772 for Vivint SkyControl Panel 

32 Domestic Industry Claim Chart – U.S. Patent No. 8,976,937 for ADT QuickConnect 
Panel 

33 Domestic Industry Claim Chart – U.S. Patent No. 8,976,937 for ADT Command Panel 

34 Domestic Industry Claim Chart – U.S. Patent No. 9,286,772 for ADT Command Panel 

35 Domestic Industry Claim Chart – U.S. Patent No. 9,286,772 for ADT TSSC Panel 

36 CONFIDENTIAL Declaration of Frank Cona 

37 Getting Started SkyControl Panel, available at 
https://wwwassets.s3.amazonaws.com/global/vivint.com/Support/HowTo/SkyControl-
3.0-Manual.pdf 

38 Overview: What Happens During an Alarm Event, available at 
http://videos.vivint.com/watch/ukF3QHyk3RzQWcpTdZwVSZ 

39 Control Panel User Guide, available at https://fccid.io/2AAAS-CP01/User-
Manual/User-Manual-2070436.pdf  

40 Regulatory Compliance Guide – 2017, Vivint Smart Home System, available at 
https://assets.vivintcdn.com/global/vivint.com/Support/RegulatoryGuide.pdf 

41 CP01 CONTROL PANEL Test Report 240021-2.2 CP01 15.249x Vivint, available at 
https://fccid.io/2AAAS-CP01/Test-Report/Test-Report-2070432 

42 Setup Guide, Smart Hub Manual, available at https://fccid.io/2AAAS-CP02/User-
Manual/Users-Manual-3185523.pdf 
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No. Description 

43 Getting Started, Smart Hub Panel, available at 
https://wwwassets.s3.amazonaws.com/global/vivint.com/Support/images/Vivint_Smart
HubV2_GettingStartedGuide_ENU%20-%20revA.2.pdf 

44 Your Vivint Home Monitoring System, available at 
https://www.vivintsource.com/services/24-7-monitoring 

45 VPI Laboratories, Test Report Certification (V042226_03), available at 
https://fccid.io/2AAAS-CP04/Test-Report/Test-Report-Sub-C15247-3584652.pdf 

46 VPI Laboratories, Test Report Certification (V036500_02), available at 
https://fccid.io/2AAAS-CP02/Test-Report/Test-Report-3185533.pdf 

47 Vivint Keypad (PAD1) - General Info and Specifications, available at 
https://support.vivint.com/s/article/Products-General-Info-2GIG-PAD1-345-Keypad  

48 Strategy Analytics: Top 10 US Interactive Security Providers, available at 
https://news.strategyanalytics.com/press-releases/press-release-details/2021/Strategy-
Analytics-Top-10-US-Interactive-Security-Providers---ADT-Remains-on-Top-as-Market-
Grows-9.3/default.aspx.   

49 ADT Safewatch QuickConnect Security System User Guide 

50 ADT7AIO/ADT5AIO Series Security Systems. Installation and Reference Guide 

51 ADT7AIO/ADT5AIO Series Security Systems. User Guide 

52 ADT Pulse Activation and Programming Guide 

53 TSSC Internal Photos 

54 What is the Total Security (TS) System, How Does it Work, Is it Z-Wave Compatible, 
Equipment FAQS available at https://www.adt.com/help/faq/equipment/total-security-
system  

55 TSSC-BASE and TSSC-KP User Guide 

 
 



- i - 

APPENDICES 
 
 

No. Description 

A Prosecution history of U.S. Patent No. 8,976,937 
B Copies of each patent and applicable pages of each technical reference mentioned in the 

prosecution history U.S. Patent No. 8,976,937 
C Prosecution history of U.S. Patent No. 9,286,772 
D Copies of each patent and applicable pages of each technical reference mentioned in the 

prosecution history U.S. Patent No. 9,286,772 
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I. INTRODUCTION 

1. ADT LLC and The ADT Security Corporation (collectively “ADT”) bring this 

verified complaint under Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. § 1337, 

based on the unlawful importation into the United States, sale for importation into the United 

States, and/or sale within the United States after importation by Vivint, Inc.  (“Vivint” or 

“Proposed Respondent”) of certain residential premises security monitoring and automation 

control panels, and components thereof, which directly or indirectly infringe one or more claims 

of United States Patent Nos. 8,976,937 and 9,286,772 (collectively “the Asserted Patents”), 

either literally or under the doctrine of equivalents, as follows: 

Asserted Patent Asserted Claims (independent claims in bold) 
U.S. Patent No. 8,976,937 1, 12 
U.S. Patent No. 9,286,772 1, 2, 3, 4, 7, 8. 9 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 18, 19 and 20 

2. The allegations herein are made based on personal knowledge of the 

Complainants with respect to ADT’s own actions, and upon information and belief as to all other 

matters. 

3. ADT is the largest and best-known provider of premises monitoring, security, and 

automation services in the United States.  Headquartered at 1501 Yamato Road, Boca Raton, 

Florida, ADT has more than 300 locations, nine owned and operated central monitoring centers, 

and the nation’s largest network of security professionals.  See Exhibit 1.   
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Fig. 1:ADT’s Florida headquarters  

4. ADT is a pioneer and leader in the field of residential and commercial security, 

fire protection, and other alarm monitoring services.  Founded in 1874 as American District 

Telegraph, ADT created the world’s first monitored residential security system.  See Exhibit 2. 

After a nighttime break-in at his home, ADT’s founder Edward Callahan created a telegraph‐

based “call‐box” that would allow him to signal for assistance to a central office.  Id.  He quickly 

connected 50 other homes in the neighborhood, creating the first residential security system 

network.  Id.  

5. Shortly thereafter, in 1890, ADT introduced the first proactive security 

monitoring and response service: “Roundsmen” made rounds each night of customers’ homes, to 

monitor the neighborhood and prevent crime before it happened.  See Exhibit 2.  

6. In the 1920s, ADT pioneered the concept of the Central Monitoring Center, 

enabling thousands of customers to link to monitoring and protection every single day of the 

year.  See Exhibit 2.   

7. A hundred years later, ADT has nine company-owned central monitoring centers 

staffed with ADT’s professional monitors.  These centers are geographically distributed across 

the United States.  This allows ADT to offer the most redundancy of any US-based monitoring 
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service, ensuring that critical monitoring and customer care services continue uninterrupted; even 

when in the midst of an unprecedent pandemic such as COVID-19, or natural disasters like 

snowstorms or earthquakes.  See Exhibit 3. 

 

Fig. 2: The special operations room at ADT's Aurora, Colo., facility in 2006, showing how video 
feeds, access control information and a host of alarm data is fed to call center responders who 

can assist in dealing with situations in real-time.  See Exhibit 4 

8. These services have made ADT both a household name and an iconic American 

brand.   

9. ADT installs security panels and other devices, and provides 24/7 monitoring 

services to its customers through a network of local authorized dealers. See Exhibit 5.  ADT’s 

authorized dealers are proud to be part of the ADT network, and ADT’s products feature 

prominently on their websites. See Exhibits 6-9.  The Famous Blue Octagon yard sign, which 

customers plant in their front yards as a means of deterring burglars and enabling quick 
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identification by first responders, now dots the yards of millions of customers’ premises across 

the country.  See Exhibit 2.  An example is shown in the figure below: 

 

Fig. 3: The famous ADT yard sign 

10. ADT also has a storied history of home-grown technological innovation, 

beginning with patents issued in 1908 for its groundbreaking “Fire Alarm Box,” and “Call Box” 

inventions.  Since then, ADT has continued to significantly invest in American research and 

development and innovation, including by being awarded the patents described in Section V 

below. 

11. ADT has won numerous industry awards in recognition of its technical innovation 

and the excellence of its associated professional services. See Exhibit 10.  For example, in April 

2021, The Monitoring Association and Security Sales & Integration Magazine presented ADT 

with the 2021 TMA/SSI Monitoring Technology “Marvel” Award, which honors innovations in 

monitoring center technology.  ADT was recognized for its innovative software that gives 

customers access to ADT’s 24/7 professional monitoring and emergency response with a simple 

swipe, tap, or voice command on their mobile phone, and the fact that ADT additionally notifies 

family and friends in case of an emergency, providing added reassurances at no additional cost.  

See Exhibit 11.  Also in 2021, ADT was the only alarm services company recognized in the 
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Newsweek America’s Most Trusted Brands Award, (Exhibit 12) and the only alarm services 

company honored with a CES 2021 Innovation award. See Exhibit 13. 

12. ADT also constantly invests in cutting-edge technologies developed by other 

industry players.  For example, ADT acquired I-View Now in 2019.  See Exhibit 14.  At the 

time, ADT noted that “helping to ensure customers’ safety is our top priority for ADT, and by 

integrating I-View Now technology into our current protocols, we can enhance the effectiveness 

and efficiency of our extensive network of ADT owned and operated monitoring centers, and 

help first responders focus on real emergencies.  I-View Now will function independently under 

the ADT umbrella, helping to provide both companies’ current and future customers with the 

best experience possible.”  Id.  Similarly, when discussing a partnership with CellBounce (see 

Exhibit 15) ADT noted “[t]here’s been a tremendous collaboration between ADT, CellBounce 

and AT&T’s engineering and development teams to enable this technology to work across 

platforms, serving not only ADT customers, but the entire home security industry operating on 

AT&T’s network.  We’re fully committed in ensuring CellBounce’s success.” Exhibit 15 at 1. 

13. ADT launched ADT Pulse in 2010, which allowed customers to remotely access 

and control their home security monitoring and automation systems.  See Exhibit 2.  A variety of 

panels were supported by ADT Pulse, including the QuickConnect and TS panel shown below: 

   

Fig. 4: ADT QuickConnect Panel and ADT TS Panel 
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14.  In 2019, ADT introduced Command and Control, which customers use to protect 

and automate their homes though the Command panel’s interface and the Control mobile app. 

See Exhibits 2 and 16.  The ADT Command panels supported by ADT Command and Control 

are shown below: 

15. The figures shown below illustrate some of the current types of ADT control 

panels that are available to American consumers for purchase today: 

   

Fig. 5: ADT Command 2x16 Control Panel and Command Touchscreen Panel 

16. Proposed Respondent imports, sells for importation into the United States and/or 

sells after importation into the United States certain residential premises security monitoring and 

automation control panels and components thereof (“Accused Products”) that infringe one or 

more claims of the Asserted Patents.  The Accused Products comprise the Vivint SkyControl 

Panel and the Vivint Smart Hub, and their components, as described below.  See also Exhibits 

17-18. 

             

Fig. 6: The accused Vivint SkyControl Panel and the accused Vivint Smart Hub Panel 
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17. As set forth in Section VI below, the Accused Products are manufactured abroad 

and are imported, sold for importation into the United States, and/or sold after importation into 

the United States. 

18. The Accused Products infringe the following claims of the Asserted Patents: 

Asserted Patent Asserted Claims (independent claims in bold) 
U.S. Patent No. 8,976,937 1, 12 
U.S. Patent No. 9,286,772 1, 2, 3, 4, 7, 8. 9 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 18, 19 and 20 

19. Copies of the certified version of the Asserted Patents are included as Exhibits 19-

20.  ADT owns all rights, title, and interest in each of the Asserted Patents.  Copies of the 

assignment records relating to the Asserted Patents are included as Exhibits 21-22.1 

20. A domestic industry as required by 19 U.S.C. § 1337(a)(2) and (3) exists in the 

United States relating to articles protected by the Asserted Patents.  The domestic industry 

includes significant domestic investments in plant and equipment, significant domestic 

employment of labor and capital, and substantial domestic investment in the exploitation of the 

inventions claimed in the Asserted Patents by ADT and its domestic partners. 

21. ADT seeks as relief a permanent limited exclusion order under 19 U.S.C. § 

1337(d) barring from entry into the United States certain residential premises security monitoring 

and automation security panels and components thereof that are manufactured abroad, sold for 

importation, imported, and/or sold in the United States after importation by or on behalf of the 

Proposed Respondent.   

22. ADT also seeks as relief permanent cease-and-desist orders under 19 U.S.C. § 

1337(f) prohibiting the Proposed Respondent from importing, selling, marketing, advertising, 

 
1 Certified copies of the assignment records and prosecution histories of the Asserted Patents 
have been ordered from the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office and will be filed upon receipt. 
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distributing, offering for sale, transferring (except for exportation), soliciting United States 

agents or distributors, or aiding and abetting other entities in the importation, sale for 

importation, sale after importation, transfer (except for exportation), or distribution of certain 

residential premises security monitoring and automation security panels and components thereof 

that infringe one or more claims of the Asserted Patents. 

23. ADT further requests that the Commission impose a bond during the 60-day 

Presidential review period pursuant to 19 U.S.C. § 1337(j) to prevent further injury to ADT’s 

domestic industry relating to the Asserted Patents.   

II. COMPLAINANTS 

24. Complainant ADT LLC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of ADT, Inc.  ADT LLC is 

a corporation existing under the laws of the state of Delaware having its principal place of 

business located at 1501 Yamato Road, Boca Raton, Florida 33431.  See Exhibit 23.  ADT LLC 

is the operating entity that conducts the business of providing security, automation, and smart 

home solutions serving consumers and businesses in the United States.  ADT LLC also conducts 

R&D on its own systems and markets, installs and sells the QuickConnect, TS, and Command 

panels (collectively, the “Domestic Industry Products”).  ADT LLC further markets its systems, 

including the Domestic Industry Products, to customers in the United States and provides design, 

engineering, training, and support (including installation, testing, and facilitation of repair) to 

customers in the United States. 

25. Complainant The ADT Security Corporation is likewise a wholly-owned 

subsidiary of ADT, Inc.  The ADT Security Corporation is a corporation existing under the laws 

of the state of Delaware having its principal place of business located at 1501 Yamato Road, 

Boca Raton, Florida 33431.  The ADT Security Corporation is a current owner by assignment of 

all of the Asserted Patents.  See Exhibits 21-22. 
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III. PROPOSED RESPONDENT 

26. Proposed Respondent Vivint, Inc.  (“Vivint”) is a Utah corporation with its 

principal place of business at 4931 North 300 West, Provo, Utah 84604.  See Exhibit 24. Vivint 

is an indirect subsidiary of Vivint Smart Home, Inc., a public company organized under the laws 

of Delaware. 

27. Vivint imports into the United States, sells for importation, and/or sells after 

importation into the United States the Accused Products comprising the Vivint SkyControl 

Panel, including the components thereto, and the Vivint Smart Hub Panel, including the 

components thereto.  

28. As of 2020, Vivint reported nearly 1.7 million subscribers in the market for 

residential security monitoring services, which Vivint claims represents just under 11% of the 

overall market of 15.6 million subscribers across the United States.  See Exhibit 48. 

IV. THE TECHNOLOGY AND PRODUCTS AT ISSUE 

29. The technology at issue relates to control panels and components thereof.  These 

control panels are provided to United States consumers as part of the provision of remote 

residential security monitoring and home automation services.  Pursuant to Commission Rules 

210.10(b)(1) and 210.12(a)(12), the Accused Products include control panels and their 

components (which further comprise software and hardware including processors, transceivers, 

and wireless communication modules).  The Accused Products comprise the Vivint SkyControl 

Panel, the Vivint Smart Hub Panel, and their components thereto (which further comprise 

software and hardware including processors, transceivers, and wireless communication 

modules).  The Accused Products are manufactured abroad and are imported into the United 

States, sold for importation in the United States, and/or sold in the United States after 

importation, by or on behalf of the Proposed Respondent. 
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V. THE ASSERTED PATENTS AND NON-TECHNICAL DESCRIPTIONS OF THE 
INVENTIONS 

A. U.S. Patent No. 8,976,937 (“the ’937 Patent”) 

i. Identification and ownership of the ’937 Patent 

30. ADT owns by assignment the full right, title, and interest in the ’937 Patent.  The 

’937 Patent is titled “Method and apparatus for communication between a security system and a 

monitoring center,” and issued on March 10, 2015.  The ’937 Patent claims priority to June 27, 

2008, names Steven Shapiro, Bernard I. Worst, and Michael E. Wilber as the co-inventors.  A 

certified copy of the ’937 Patent is attached as Exhibit 19.  Credit Suisse AG, Barclays Bank 

PLC, and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., each holds a collateral security interest in the ’937 Patent.  A 

copy of the prosecution history of the ’937 Patent is attached as Appendix A.  Copies of each 

patent and applicable pages of each technical reference mentioned in the prosecution history of 

the ’937 Patent are attached as Appendix B. 

ii. Expiration date for the ’937 Patent 

31. The ’937 Patent expires on July 27, 2032. 

iii. Foreign counterparts to the ’937 Patent 

32. The following foreign patent applications corresponding to the ’937 Patent were 

filed, and have either issued, or been abandoned, withdrawn, or rejected, as indicated below: 

Application No. Publication No. Application 
Date 

Publication 
Date 

Status 

09770830 EP2291992 06/22/2009 03/09/2011 Abandoned 
200980124100.2 CN102077563 06/22/2009 05/25/2011 Abandoned 
2728834 CA2728834 06/22/2009 12/30/2009 Issued as 

Canadian Patent 
No. 2,728,834; 
expires June 22, 
2029 

1020117002165 KR10201100367
43 

06/22/2009 04/08/2011 Abandoned 

2009262681 AU2009262681 06/22/2009 01/13/2011 Abandoned 
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Application No. Publication No. Application 
Date 

Publication 
Date 

Status 

PCT/US2009/48
084 

WO/2009/15829
6 

06/22/2009 12/30/2009 Abandoned 

8494/CHENP/20
10 

IN8494/CHENP/
2010 

12/27/2010 09/02/2011 Abandoned 

iv. Non-technical description of the ’937 Patent 

33. The ’937 Patent describes systems and methods for providing communication 

between a customer’s premises and a central monitoring center.  Specifically, when an alarm 

event occurs at the premises, the control panel transmits a signal to the central monitoring center 

using a first communication format, and enters a call-back mode to receive an in-bound call from 

the central monitoring center.  The central monitoring center initiates a two-way voice session 

with the control panel at the premises using a second communications format, enabling a voice 

session between the premises and the central monitoring center.  

v. Licensees to the ’937 Patent 

34. There are no licensees to the ’937 Patent. 

B. U.S. Patent 9,286,772  (“the ’772 Patent”) 

i. Identification and ownership of the ’772 Patent 

35. ADT owns by assignment the full right, title, and interest in U.S. Patent No. 

9,286,772 (“the ’772 Patent”).  The ’772 Patent is titled “Security system and method,” and 

issued on March 15, 2016.  The ’772 Patent claims priority to July 29, 2011, and names Steven 

Shapiro, Raymond North, Timothy Albert Rader, Jorge Perdomo, Anne-Marie Rouse, and James 

Timothy Black as the co-inventors.  Credit Suisse AG, Barclays Bank PLC, and Wells Fargo 

Bank, N.A., each holds a collateral security interest in the ’772 Patent.  A certified copy of the 

’772 Patent is attached as Exhibit 20.  A copy of the prosecution history of the ’772 Patent is 
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attached as Appendix C.  Copies of each patent and applicable pages of each technical reference 

mentioned in the prosecution history of the ’772 Patent are attached as Appendix D. 

ii. Expiration date for the ’772 Patent 

36. The ’772 Patent expires on July 27, 2032. 

iii. Foreign counterparts to the ’772 Patent 

37. No foreign patents or patent applications corresponding to the ’772 Patent have 

been filed, abandoned, withdrawn, or rejected.  

iv. Non-technical description of the ’772 Patent 

38. The ’772 Patent is generally directed to a security control apparatus at a premises, 

which includes a processor, a wireless communication element, and a remote communication 

element.  The processor communicates with the wireless communication element and the remote 

communication element.  The wireless communication element is in communication with the 

premises’ devices.  The premises’ device can include life-safety related sensors such as carbon 

monoxide sensors, flooding sensors and contact sensors, and life-style sensors such as controls 

for lighting, temperature, energy usage, door lock and power settings.  The processor is 

configured to use the wireless communication element to receive local control and configuration 

data.  The processor is also configured to use the remote communication element to 

communicate data associated with at least one of a life safety feature and lifestyle feature.  The 

remote communications element is configured to provide remote communications with a 

monitoring center. 

v. Licensees to the ’772 Patent 

39. There are no licensees to the ’772 Patent. 
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VI. PROPOSED RESPONDENT’S UNLAWFUL AND UNFAIR ACTS 

40. Proposed Respondent sells for importation, imports, and/or sells in the United 

States after importation certain residential premises security monitoring and automation control 

panels and components thereof that infringe one or more claims of the Asserted Patents.  Specific 

examples of infringing products imported into and sold within the United States by or on behalf 

of the Proposed Respondents are set forth below in detail. 

A. Importation and Sale 

41. Specific instances of importation, sale for importation into the United States, 

and/or sale within the United States after importation of Accused Products by the Proposed 

Respondent are set forth below.  These instances are exemplary in nature and not intended to 

restrict the scope of any exclusion order or other remedy the International Trade Commission 

may order. 

42. Vivint is involved in the importation, sale for importation, and/or sale in the 

United States after importation of the Accused Products for installation in customers’ homes and 

premises across the United States.  These acts constitute acts in violation of Section 337. 

43. For example Vivint, in its annual report for 2020, admits that “We conduct our 

business in the U.S. and Canada and source our products in Thailand, Vietnam, Mexico, Taiwan, 

China, Malaysia and the United States.” Exhibit 25 at 28.  The Accused Products that infringe 

the Asserted Patents have been imported, sold for importation, and/or sold within the United 

States after importation in violation of, inter alia, Section 337(a)(1)(B)(i).  The specific instances 
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of importation of infringing products set forth below are illustrative and non-exhaustive 

examples of the unlawful importation of infringing products.2 

44. Exhibit 26 is a Vivint invoice dated May 4, 2021 reflecting the sale of a DIY 

Starter Kit, which included the accused Vivint Smart Hub Panel, that was purchased from Vivint 

in the United States and delivered to an address in Boca Raton, Florida.  As shown below, the 

rear of the casing for the Vivint Smart Hub Panel (which was shipped by Vivint to Boca Raton, 

Florida) is labeled “Assembled in Vietnam,” which is one of the countries Vivint admits in its 

Annual Report is a source of its products (see Ex. 25 at 28): 

 

Fig. 7: Rear-view photograph of Vivint Smart Hub Panel 

45. Additionally, photos of the accused Vivint SkyControl Panel that are available on 

Vivint’s website indicate that the product is manufactured in China, which is another country 

that Vivint identifies in its Annual Report as a source of its products.  Exhibit 17.  An annotated 

example of one such photograph, taken from Vivint’s website, is shown below: 

 
2 Specifically, ADT seeks relief on any other Vivint panel that may be revealed to infringe 
during discovery.  
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Fig. 8: Annotated image of Vivint SkyControl Panel from Vivint’s website. 

46. Vivint targets sales of the Accused Products to customers in the United States 

including through its website www.vivint.com and other marketing channels.  See Exhibit 27.3  

Upon information and belief, all the Accused Products in the United States are manufactured by 

Vivint’s outsourcing partners located abroad.  These acts by Vivint are evidence that Vivint has 

sold for importation, imported and/or sold after importation, in the United States, the Vivint 

SkyControl Panels in violation of Section 337.   

47. ADT believes that discovery will likely reveal other examples of Vivint’s 

importation, sale for importation, and/or sale after importation of the Accused Products. 

 
3 Upon information and belief, the Accused Products are not sold separately but as part of 
residential premises security monitoring and home automation services.  Accordingly, ADT 
seeks relief on any infringing Vivint panel that is sold as part of a home security monitoring 
service, or that is currently imported into the United States or held in inventory in the United 
States.  
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B. Direct and Indirect Infringement 

i. Direct Infringement of the ’937 Patent 

48. The Accused Products directly infringe, literally and/or under the doctrine of 

equivalents, at least claims 1 and 12 of the ’937 Patent.  Vivint directly infringes these claims 

under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by making, using, offering to sell, importing, selling for importation, 

and/or selling after importation into the United States the Accused Products.  As shown in the 

attached claim chart marked Exhibit 28, the Vivint Smart Hub Panel and its components thereto 

satisfy all limitations of at least claims 1 and 12 of the ’937 Patent.  As shown in the attached 

claim chart marked Exhibit 29, the Vivint SkyControl Panel and its components thereto satisfy 

all limitations of at least claims 1 and 12 of the ’937 Patent.  On information and belief, Vivint 

imports into the United States, sell for importation, and/or sell after importation the Accused 

Products.4 

ii. Indirect Infringement of the ’937 Patent 

49. Vivint has also induced and continues to induce others to infringe, literally or 

under the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1 and 12 of the ’937 Patent under 35 U.S.C. § 

271(b).  Vivint has knowledge of the ’937 Patent and the Accused Products’ infringement 

thereof since at least the time it was served with this Complaint. Vivint’s knowledge of the ’937 

Patent, while continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the Accused 

Products with the intent that they be assembled and/or used in the United States by their 

customers in an infringing manner constitutes inducing infringement.  When Vivint’s customers 

install and/or use the Accused Products in their intended manner, they directly infringe at least 

each of claims 1 and 12 of the ’937 Patent.  By providing the Accused Products to customers, 

 
4 The supporting evidence cited in Exhibits 28 and 29 can also be found at Exhibits 37-47. 
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together with instructions on how to assemble and/or use them in an infringing manner while 

being on notice of the ’937 Patent, Vivint specifically intends for Vivint’s customers to infringe 

the ’937 Patent. 

50. Vivint contributorily infringes at least claims 1 and 12 of the ’937 Patent.  Vivint 

has had knowledge of the ’937 Patent and the Accused Products’ infringement thereof since at 

least the time it was served with this Complaint.  When Vivint’s customers install and/or use the 

Accused Products in their intended manner, they directly infringe the ’937 Patent.  The Accused 

Products are specially designed to infringe the ’937 Patent and have no substantial non-

infringing uses.  Vivint’s receipt of the Complaint, and its continuing to sell, offer for sale, 

import, and/or sell for importation the Accused Products that embody at least a material part (if 

not all) of the claimed invention of the ’937 Patent, including the Accused Products that are 

known by Vivint to be specially made or adapted for use in an infringing manner, and are not 

staple articles with substantial non-infringing uses, constitutes contributory infringement. 

iii. Direct Infringement of the ’772 Patent 

51. The Accused Products directly infringe, literally and/or under the doctrine of 

equivalents, at least claims 1, 2, 3, 4, 7, 8. 9 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 18, 19 and 20 of the ’772 

Patent.  Vivint directly infringes these claims under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) by making, using, 

offering to sell, importing, selling for importation, and/or selling after importation into the 

United States the Accused Products.  As shown in the attached claim chart marked Exhibit 30, 

the Vivint Smart Hub Panel and its components thereto satisfy all limitations of at least claims 1, 

2, 3, 4, 7, 8. 9 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 18, 19 and 20  of the ’772 Patent.  As shown in the attached 

claim chart marked Exhibit 31, the Vivint SkyControl Panel and its components thereto satisfy 

all limitations of at least claims 1, 2, 3, 4, 7, 8. 9 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 18, 19 and 20  of the ’772 
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Patent.  On information and belief, Vivint imports into the United States, sell for importation, 

and/or sell after importation the Accused Products. 5 

iv. Indirect Infringement of the ’772 Patent 

52. Vivint has also induced and continues to induce others to infringe, literally or 

under the doctrine of equivalents, at least claims 1, 2, 3, 4, 7, 8. 9 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 18, 19 

and 20 of the ’772 Patent under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b).  Vivint has knowledge of the ’772 Patent 

and the Accused Products’ infringement thereof since at least the time it was served with this 

Complaint. Vivint’s knowledge of the ’772 Patent, while continuing to sell, offer for sale, 

import, and/or sell for importation the Accused Products with the intent that they be assembled 

and/or used in the United States by their customers in an infringing manner constitutes inducing 

infringement.  When Vivint’s customers install and/or use the Accused Products in their intended 

manner, they directly infringe at least each of claims 1, 2, 3, 4, 7, 8. 9 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 18, 

19 and 20 of the ’772 Patent.  By providing the Accused Products to customers, together with 

instructions on how to assemble and/or use them in an infringing manner while being on notice 

of the ’772 Patent, Vivint specifically intends for Vivint’s customers to infringe the ’772 Patent. 

53. Vivint contributorily infringes at least claims 1, 2, 3, 4, 7, 8. 9 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 

15, 18, 19 and 20 of the ’772 Patent.  Vivint has had knowledge of the ’772 Patent and the 

Accused Products’ infringement thereof since at least the time it was served with this Complaint.  

When Vivint’s customers install and/or use the Accused Products in their intended manner, they 

directly infringe the ’772 Patent.  The Accused Products are specially designed to infringe the 

’772 Patent and have no substantial non-infringing uses.  Vivint’s receipt of the Complaint, and 

its continuing to sell, offer for sale, import, and/or sell for importation the Accused Products that 

 
5 The supporting evidence cited in Exhibits 30 and 31 can also be found at Exhibits 37-47. 
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embody at least a material part (if not all) of the claimed invention of the ’772 Patent, including 

the Accused Products that are known by Vivint to be specially made or adapted for use in an 

infringing manner, and are not staple articles with substantial non-infringing uses, constitutes 

contributory infringement. 

VII. CLASSIFICATION OF THE INFRINGING PRODUCTS UNDER THE 
HARMONIZED TARIFF SCHEDULE 

54. Upon information and belief, the Harmonized Tariff Schedule of the United States 

(“HTSUS”) item numbers under which the infringing residential premises security monitoring 

and automation control panels and components thereof may be imported into the United States 

includes at least HTSUS 8531.10.0000, (“burglar or fire alarms and similar apparatus.”), HTSUS 

8531.20.00 (“[e]lectrical sound or visual signaling apparatus (for example, bells, sirens, indicator 

panels, burglar or fire alarms), other than those of heading 8512 or 8530; parts thereof: 

[i]ndicator panels incorporating liquid crystal devices (LCD's) or light emitting diodes 

(LED's).”), HTSUS 8525.10.80, (“[t]ransmission apparatus for...radiobroadcasting...: [o]ther: 

[t]ransmitters.”), HTSUS 8531.90.00 (infrared detectors incorporating RF transmitters), 

8527.39.00 (“[r]eception apparatus for...radiobroadcasting...: [o]ther radiobroadcast receivers...: 

[o]ther.”), HTSUS 8517.40.50 (“[e]lectrical apparatus for line telephony or telegraphy, including 

such apparatus for carrier-current line systems; parts thereof: [o]ther apparatus, for carrier-

current line systems: [o]ther: [t]elephonic.”), and/or HTSUS 8531.90.00 (“[e]lectrical sound or 

visual signaling apparatus (for example, bells, sirens, indicator panels, burglar or fire alarms), 

other than those of heading 8512 or 8530; parts thereof: [p]arts.”).  These classifications are 

exemplary in nature and not intended to restrict the scope of any exclusion order or other remedy 

ordered by the Commission. 
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VIII. RELATED LITIGATION 

55. The Asserted Patents have not been the subject of any prior proceedings before 

any court or agency.  Vivint has sued ADT in the United States District Court for the District of 

Utah, alleging infringement of Vivint’s patents.  Case No. 2:21-cv-00115-JNP-DBP.  The patents 

asserted by Vivint in that case are not related to the Asserted Patents that are the subject of the 

instant litigation. 

56. ADT has filed a Complaint in the United States District Court for the Western 

District of Texas on June 29, 2021 alleging patent infringement of the same Asserted Patents by 

Vivint.  (“District Court Action”).  Vivint has not yet responded to the Complaint, and discovery 

has not yet commenced in the District Court Action. 

57. The unfair acts by the Proposed Respondent, as alleged in this Complaint, or the 

subject matter thereof, are not and have never been the subject of any other court, tribunal, or 

agency litigation, domestic or foreign. 

IX. THE DOMESTIC INDUSTRY 

58. As required by 19 U.S.C. §§ 1337(a)(2) and (a)(3), a domestic industry exists in 

the United States relating to the Asserted Patents and articles protected by the Asserted Patents 

by virtue of ADT’s (i) significant investments in plant and equipment, (ii) significant 

investments in labor and capital, and (iii) substantial investments in the exploitation of the 

Asserted Patents through research and development, engineering. 

A. ADT’s Articles that Practice the Asserted Patents (Technical Prong) 

59. The Domestic Industry Products each practice at least one claim of each of the 

Asserted Patents.   
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60. Claim charts demonstrating that one or more representative Domestic Industry 

Product(s) practice(s) an exemplary claim of each of the Asserted Patents are attached as 

Exhibits 32-35, and the supporting evidence cited therein can also be found at Exhibits 49-55.6 

B. United States Economic Activity Relating to the Domestic Industry Products 
and the Asserted Patents (Economic Prong) 

61. A domestic industry as defined under 19 U.S.C. § 1337(a)(3) exists, comprised of 

ADT’s significant and substantial investments in plant and equipment, employment of labor and 

capital, and substantial investment in exploitation of the Asserted Patents in the United States. 

62. ADT engages in a broad range of domestic activities, including design 

engineering, sales and marketing, assembly and installation, training, repair, service, support and 

monitoring activities related to the Domestic Industry Products and the exploitation of the 

Asserted Patents. 

63. ADT has made significant investments with respect to the Domestic Industry 

Products and the exploitation of the Asserted Patents.  ADT’s domestic facilities support design 

engineering, sales and marketing, customer support, training, testing, repair and service, and 

spare parts and components warehousing for ADT’s distributors and customers across the United 

States.  Several of ADT’s facilities also house active residential premises security monitoring 

and automation systems used for testing and servicing residential premises security monitoring 

and automation control panels and components thereof, in order to undertake service, repair, and 

warranty support work.  ADT’s employees and consultants work in its facilities across the 

United States, as well as on-site at customer installations. 

 
6 The Domestic Industry Products practice more claims than the claims charted in Exhibits 32-
35, and ADT may additionally demonstrate satisfaction of the technical prong through other 
claims of the Asserted Patents. 
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64. ADT’s partners have also made significant investments with respect to the 

Domestic Industry Products and the exploitation of the Asserted Patents.  ADT’s suppliers and 

distributors maintain facilities and equipment across the United States, and employ American 

workers to provide design, engineering, assembly, installation, maintenance, and service 

activities with respect to the Domestic Industry Products. 

65. The activities described above are discussed in greater detail in the Declaration of 

Frank Cona, attached as Exhibit 36. 

X. RELIEF REQUESTED 

66. In light of the foregoing, ADT respectfully requests that the Commission: 

a. Institute an investigation pursuant to Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 

1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. § 1337, with respect to Proposed Respondents’ violations of 

that section arising from the importation into the United States, sale for importation, 

and/or the sale within the United States after importation of certain residential premises 

security monitoring and automation control panels and components thereof that infringe 

one or more claims of the Asserted Patents; 

b. Schedule and conduct a hearing pursuant to Section 337(c) for the 

purposes of: (i) receiving evidence and hearing argument concerning whether there has 

been a violation of Section 337; and (ii) following the hearing, determining that there has 

been a violation of Section 337; 

c. Issue a permanent limited exclusion order directed to products 

manufactured, designed, offered for sale, and/or sold by the Proposed Respondents, their 

subsidiaries, their related companies, and/or agents pursuant to 19 U.S.C. § 1337(d), 

excluding entry into the United States of certain residential premises security monitoring 
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and automation control panels and components thereof that infringe one or more claims 

of the Asserted Patents; 

d. Issue a permanent cease and desist order pursuant to 19 U.S.C. § 1337(f) 

prohibiting the Proposed Respondents, their subsidiaries, their related companies, agents, 

and/or other affiliates from conducting any of the following activities in the United 

States: importing, selling, marketing, advertising, distributing, offering for sale, 

transferring (except for exportation), soliciting United States agents or distributors, or 

aiding and abetting other entities in the importation, sale for importation, sale after 

importation, transfer (except for exportation), or distribution of certain residential 

premises security monitoring and automation control panels and components thereof that 

infringe one or more claims of the Asserted Patents;  

e. Impose a bond during the 60-day Presidential review period pursuant to 19 

U.S.C. § 1337(j) to prevent further injury to ADT’s domestic industry relating to the 

Asserted Patents; and 

f. Issue other and further relief as the Commission deems just and proper 

under the law, based on the facts determined by the investigation and the authority of the 

Commission. 
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Dated: June 29, 2021 PILLSBURY WINTHROP SHAW PITTMAN LLP  
 
/s/ Eric C. Rusnak 

 Michael E. Zeliger 
michael.zeliger@pillsburylaw.com 
Audrey Lo 
audrey.lo@pillsburylaw.com 
Ranjini Acharya 
ranjini.acharya@pillsburylaw.com 
2550 Hanover Street  
Palo Alto, CA 94304 
Telephone (650) 233-4500 
Facsimile: (650) 233-4545 
 
Eric C. Rusnak 
eric.rusnak@pillsburylaw.com 
Kecia Reynolds 
kecia.reynolds@pillsburylaw.com 
1200 Seventeenth St NW 
Washington, DC 20036 
Telephone (202) 663-8000 
Facsimile: (202) 663-8007 
 
Attorneys for Complainants 
 

 



VERIFICATION 

 I, Frank Cona, hereby declare and state, in accordance with 19 C.F.R. §§ 210.4 and 

210.12(a) and under the penalty of perjury, that the following statements are true: 

1.  I am the Vice President and Deputy General Counsel, IP & Privacy, of ADT LLC 

(“ADT”) where I have worked since 2012.  I am duly authorized to verify this Complaint 

of ADT LLC and The ADT Security Corporation under Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 

1930, as Amended (the “Complaint”). 

2. I have read the Complaint, and I am aware of its contents. 

3. To the best of my knowledge, information, and belief, formed after an inquiry reasonable 

under the circumstances, (a) the claims and other legal contentions in the Complaint are 

warranted by existing law or by a non-frivolous argument for the extension, modification 

or reversal of existing law or the establishment of new law, and (b) the allegations and 

other factual contentions in the Complaint have evidentiary support, or if specifically so 

identified, are likely to have evidentiary support after a reasonable opportunity for further 

investigation or discovery. 

4. The Complaint is not being presented for any improper purpose, such as to harass or to 

cause unnecessary delay or needless increase in the cost of the investigation or related 

proceeding. 

I declare under the penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of America that 

the foregoing is true and correct, and that statements made on information and belief are believed 

by me to be true. 
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Executed this 29th day of June 2021. 

 
    _________________________________ 
    Frank Cona 

Vice President and Deputy General Counsel, IP & Privacy, 
ADT LLC 

     




